
CURRY COUNTY  

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

94235 Moore Street 

Gold Beach, Oregon 

(541) 247-3296 

BOC_Office@currycountyor.gov 

www.currycountyor.gov 

 

AGENDA 
BUSINESS MEETING 

March 5, 2025 

6:00 p.m. 

Location: Port Orford City Hall, 555 20th Street, Port Orford                                                                  

 

Items may be taken out of sequence to accommodate staff availability and the public. 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

2. AMENDMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 

 

3. PRESENTATION 

A. Aquatic Safety, Luke Martinez 

 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS  

To make a public comment, please submit a Speaker’s Slip to the Chair prior to the start of the 

meeting, or email public comments during the meeting to BOC_Office@currycountyor.gov. Public 

comments are limited to three (3) minutes per speaker.  

             

5. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 

 

6. CONSENT AGENDA  

A. Approve Minutes for Special Meeting on February 18, 2025 (Pg. 1) 

B. Approve Chip Seal Aggregate Contract (Pg. 4) 

C. Approve Seal Oil Contract (Pg. 19) 

 

7. PUBLIC HEARING 

A. Amending Article Eight, Division One, Imposing Transient Lodging Tax, of the Curry 

County Code (Pg, 33)  

i. Order (Pg. 34) 

ii. Curry County Code (Pg. 36) 

 

 

 

 

mailto:BOC_Office@currycountyor.gov
http://www.currycountyor.gov/
mailto:BOC_Office@currycountyor.gov


Meetings are broadcast on Time Warner Channel 182 and YouTube – Curry County Civic TV.  

To make a public comment, please submit a Speaker’s Slip to the Chair prior to the start of the meeting, 

or email public comments during the meeting to BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us. 

Auxiliary aids will be provided upon request with 48-hour advance notification. 

 

 

8. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 

A. SkillBridge Internship – Aquatic Safety (Pg. 58) 

*Public Comments*  

i. Order (Pg. 59) 

ii. Memorandum (Pg. 60  

 

B. Adjusting Tower Fees for Coos Forest Protective Agency (Pg. 73) 

i. Order (Pg. 74) 

 

C. Discussion – Natural Resource Advisory Committee (Pg. 75) 

 

9. PUBLIC SAFETY UPDATE 

 

10. DIRECTOR OF COUNTY OPERATIONS UPDATE 

 

11. ELECTED OFFICAILS UPDATE 

 

 

12. COMMISSIONER UPDATE 

A. Commissioner Trost  

B. Commissioner Hollinger 

C. Commissioner Alcorn 

 

13. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

192.660(2)()  

 

 

14. OTHER   

ORS 192.640(1) provides that “… notice shall include a list of the principal subjects 

anticipated to be considered at the meeting, but this requirement shall not limit the ability 

of a governing body to consider additional subjects.” 

 

15. ADJOURN 

mailto:BOC_Office@co.curry.or.us


  CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
City of Brookings Council Chambers 

898 Elk Drive, Brookings, Oregon 

www.currycountyor.gov 

BUSINESS MEETING MINUTES 

February 18, 2025 

Please note: For detailed information on any agenda item refer to Audio/Video. 
. 

1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The meeting was called to order 6:00 p.m.; present were Chair Brad Alcorn, Commissioner

Hollinger and Commissioner Jay Trost

Staff present: Director of County Operations and County Counsel Ted Fitzgerald, County

Counsel Assistant Rabiah Lee, and BOC Assistant Natasha Tippetts

The Pledge was recited by all.

2. AMENDMENT AND APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

Trost removed 7A “Wildfire Hazard Map”

Trost motioned to approve the agenda as amended. Hollinger seconded. Motion carried

unanimously.

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS

• Lynn Coker – Read statement thanking Board

• Tim Scullen – Expressed opinion on County Business

• Georgia Cockerham – Expressed opinion on County Business

• Tom Beene - Expressed opinion on County Business

• Andre Bay - Expressed opinion on County Business

• Iris Leaver – Expressed opinion regarding 7A, Wildfire Map Resolution

• Grady Guerrant - Expressed opinion regarding 7A, Wildfire Map Resolution

• John Goodwin - Expressed opinion regarding 7A, Wildfire Map Resolution

• Bret Cecil - Expressed opinion regarding 7A, Wildfire Map Resolution

• Bob Morrow - Expressed opinion regarding 7A, Wildfire Map Resolution

• Ann Vileisis – Expressed Opinion regarding 7A, Wildfire Map Resolution

• Joy May – Expressed opinion regarding 7A, Wildfire Map Resolution

• Kim Foster – Expressed opinion regarding 7A, Wildfire Map Resolution

• Jana Rogers – Expressed opinion regarding 7A, Wildfire Map Resolution

1

http://www.currycountyor.gov/


 

• Zoe Bradbury – Expressed opinion regarding 7A, Wildfire Map Resolution 

• Mari Lochhaas – Expressed opinion regarding 7A, Wildfire Map Resolution  

• Neil Holcomb – Expressed opinion regarding 7A, Wildfire Map Resolution  

• Dee Ragsdale – Expressed opinion regarding 7A, Wildfire Map Resolution  

• Meg Humphreys – Expressed opinion regarding 7A, Wildfire Map Resolution 

• Janae Lloyd - Expressed opinion regarding 7A, Wildfire Map Resolution 

• Tim Palmet - Expressed opinion regarding 7A, Wildfire Map Resolution 

• Kris Vyverberg - Expressed opinion regarding 7A, Wildfire Map Resolution 

• Kirk Vyverberg - Expressed opinion regarding7A, Wildfire Map Resolution 

• Cindy Carr - Expressed opinion regarding 7A, Wildfire Map Resolution 

• Poppie Lemmons-Kretz - Expressed opinion regarding 7A, Wildfire Map Resolution 

• Alan Johnson - Expressed opinion regarding 7A, Wildfire Map Resolution 

 

 

4. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 

Hollinger – Expressed appreciation for Public Comments 

Trost – Provided information on 7A, Wildfire Map Resolution 

Alcorn – Provided information regarding the Citizen Advisory Committee 

 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 

A. Approve Minutes for Special Meeting on January 23, 2025 

B. Approve Minutes for Special Meeting on February 3, 2025 

C. Approve Minutes for Business Meeting on February 5, 2025 

D. Reappoint Member to Budget Committee 

E. Hire Order – A. Sheely – Communications Deputy  

 

Hollinger would like it stated in the record that the minutes for February 5, Item 7, TLT Tax 

states that he seconded the motion when he abstained. Minutes will be amended to reflect.  

 

Trost motioned to approve the Consent Agenda as amended. Hollinger seconded. Motion 

carried unanimously.           

 

6. PUBLIC HEARING 

A. Annexation into a Special District 

 

Chair Alcorn opened Public Hearing at 7:50 p.m. 

 

Trost motioned to approve petition for annexation – BOC Annexation No 25-01. 

Hollinger seconded. Motion carried unanimously.  

 

Chair Alcorn closed Public Hearing at 7:51 p.m. 

 

7. DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS  

A. Wildfire Hazard Map 

 

8.   PUBLIC SAFETY UPDATE 

 

2



 

9. DIRECTOR OF COUNTY OPERATIONS UPDATE 

 

10.  ELECTED OFFICIALS UPDATE 

 

Ann Vileisis, Port Orford Mayor – provided information on Port Orford business.  

 

11. COMMISSIONER UPDATE  

Commissioner Hollinger – None 

Commissioner Trost – Stated he is going to a meeting at the Capital the following day. Showed 

a new County Seal and requested feedback from other Commissioners. They were in 

agreement that the Seal could be approved via a Resolution at any future meeting.   

Commissioner Alcorn – Provided information on upcoming Meetings.  

12.  OTHER 

ORS 192.640(1) provides that “… notice shall include a list of the principal subjects 

anticipated to be considered at the meeting, but this requirement shall not limit the ability of a 

governing body to consider additional subjects.” 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at 8:00 p.m. 

 

Dated this 5th day of March, 2025 

 

 

 

______________________         ______________________ ______________________  

Brad Alcorn, Chair       Patrick Hollinger, Vice Chair Jay Trost, Commissioner  

 

Minutes prepared by Natasha Tippetts, Administrative Assistant 

3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



BEFORE THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY, OREGON 

 

In the Matter of an Ordinance Amending 

Article Eight, Division One of Curry 

County Code to Reflect an Increased 

Transient Lodging Tax Imposition Rate 

) 

) 

) 

) 

 

ORDINANCE NO. ___________ 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Curry County Commissioners has determined that it is in the best 

interests of the County to increase revenue from tourism related lodging; and 

 

WHEREAS, all proceeds from the existing and increased tax collection shall be distributed as 

provided by ORS 320.350(6). 

 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS HEREBY 

ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION I  TITLE 

This Ordinance shall be known as Ordinance No. 25-01 and may be cited as “Ordinance Amending 

Article Eight, Division One of Curry County Code to Reflect an Increased Transient Lodging Tax 

Imposition Rate.” 

 

SECTION II  AUTHORITY 

This Ordinance is enacted pursuant to the authority vested in this governing body by the Curry 

County Transient Lodging Tax Authorizing Ordinance (19-01) and the provisions of Oregon 

Revised Statutes, Chapter 320.   

 

SECTION III  PURPOSE 

This Ordinance amends Article Eight, Division One, Section 8.01.031 of Curry County Code to 

reflect an increased imposition rate for the Curry County Transient Lodging Tax. Previously, the 

rate imposed was seven percent (7%). Upon the effective date of this Ordinance, the rate imposed 

shall be ten percent (10%).   

 

SECTION IV  ADOPTION 

The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby adopted and shall be effective ninety (90) days from 

the date of this Ordinance and shall remain in force and effect until otherwise ordained by the 

Board of Curry County Commissioners.  

 

SECTION V  SEVERANCE CLAUSE 

If any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance, or any part 

thereof, is for any reason held to be unconstitutional or otherwise invalid, such decision shall not 

affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance or any part thereof. The legislative 

34



body hereby declares that it would have passed each section, subsection, subdivision, paragraph, 

sentence, clause or phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any provision be declared 

unconstitutional or otherwise invalid.  

 

SECTION VII EFFECTIVE DATE 

This Ordinance shall become effective on the 16th day of June, 2025.  

 

 

DATED this 18th day of March, 2025. BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Approved as to Form: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Michael E. Fitzgerald, OSB #950738 

Curry County Legal Counsel 

 

_________________________________________ 

Brad Alcorn, Chair 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Patrick Hollinger, Vice Chair 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Jay Trost, Commissioner 

 

 

 

First Reading:  March 5, 2023   

Second Reading: March 18, 2023  

Effective Date: June 16, 2025   

35



ARTICLE EIGHT 

 

DIVISION ONE  IMPOSING TRANSIENT LODGING TAX 

 

SECTION 8.01.010  STATEMENT OF PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY 

This Division is enacted pursuant to Curry County Transient Lodging Tax Authorizing Ordinance; 

Ordinance No. 19-01. The purpose of this Division is to codify the imposition of the tax enacted 

by Ordinance pursuant to Oregon Revised Statutes, Chapter 320.  

 

SECTION 8.01.020  DEFINITIONS 

Except where the context otherwise requires, the following definitions from ORS 320.300 given 

in this section govern the construction of this ordinance. 

1. “Board” means the Board of County Commissioners of Curry County. 

2. “Collection reimbursement charge” means the amount a transient lodging tax 

collector may retain as reimbursement for the costs incurred by the transient 

lodging tax collector in collecting and reporting a transient lodging tax and in 

maintaining transient lodging tax records. 

3. “Conference center” means a facility that” 

a. Is owned or partially owned by a unit of local government, a governmental 

agency or a nonprofit organization; and 

b. Meets the current membership criteria of the International Association of 

Conference Centers. 

4. “Convention center” means a new or improved facility that: 

a. Is capable of attracting and accommodating conventions and trade shows 

from international, national and regional markets requiring exhibition 

space, ballroom space, meeting rooms and any other associated space, 

including without limitation banquet facilities, loading areas and lobby and 

registration areas; 

b. Has a total meeting room and ballroom space between one-third and one-

half of the total size of the center’s exhibition space; 

c. Generates a majority of its business income from tourists; 

36



d. Has a room-block relationship with the local lodging industry; and 

e. Is owned by a unit of local government, a governmental agency or non profit 

organization. 

5. “County transient lodging tax” means the tax imposed under this Division.  

6. “Person” means any individual, firm, partnership, joint venture, association, social 

club, fraternal organization, fraternity, sorority, public or private dormitory, joint 

stock company, corporation, estate, trust, business trust, receiver, trustee, syndicate, 

or any other group, or combination acting as a unit, or other organization or entity.  

7. “Tax Administrator” means the Board of County Commissioners of Curry County, 

or the person it so designates. 

8. “Tourism” means economic activity resulting from tourists. 

9. “Tourism promotion” means any of the following activities: 

a. Advertising, publicizing or distributing information for the purpose of 

attracting and welcoming tourists; 

b. Conducting strategic planning and research necessary to stimulate future 

tourism development; 

c. Operating tourism promotion agencies; and 

d. Marketing special events and festivals designed to attract tourists. 

10. “Tourism-related facility” means: 

a. A conference center, convention center or visitor information center; and 

b. Other improved real property that has a useful life of ten (10) or more years 

and has a substantial purpose of supporting tourism or accommodating 

tourist activities. 

11. “Tourist” means a person who, for business, pleasure, recreation or participation in 

events related to the arts, heritage or culture, travels from the community in which 

that person is a resident to a different community that is separate, distinct from and 

unrelated to the person’s community of residence, and that trip: 

a. Requires the person to travel more than fifty (50) miles from the community 

of residence; or 

b. Includes an overnight stay. 

12. “Transient Lodging” or “Transient Lodging Facility” means: 

37



a. Hotel, motel and Inn dwelling units that are used for temporary overnight 

human occupancy; 

b. Spaces used for parking recreational vehicles or erecting tents during 

periods of human occupancy; or 

c. Houses, cabins, condominiums, apartment units, or other dwelling units, or 

portions of any of these dwelling units that are used for temporary human 

occupancy.  

13. “Transient Lodging Intermediary” means a person other than a transient lodging 

provider that facilitates the retail sale of transient lodging and charges for 

occupancy of the transient lodging. 

14. “Transient Lodging Provider” means a person that furnishes transient lodging.  

15. “Transient Lodging Tax Collector” means a transient lodging provider or a transient 

lodging intermediary.  

16. “Visitor Information Center” means a building or a portion of a building, the main 

purpose of which is to distribute or disseminate information to tourists.  

 

SECTION 8.01.030 IMPOSITION OF TAX 

8.01.031  Imposition and Rate of Tax 

A tax of ten percent (10%) is imposed on any rent or consideration rendered for the sale, service 

or furnishing of transient lodging.  

8.01.032  Computation of Tax 

The tax must be computed on the total retail price, including all charges other than taxes, paid by 

a person for occupancy of the transient lodging. The total retail price paid, including all charges 

other than taxes, paid by a person for occupancy of the transient lodging that is part of a travel 

package, may be determined by reasonable and verifiable standards from books and records kept 

in the ordinary course of the transient lodging tax collector’s business.  

The tax shall be collected by the transient lodging tax collector that receives the rent or 

consideration rendered for occupancy of the transient lodging.  

8.01.033  Transient Lodging Tax Collector Reimbursement 

The transient lodging tax collector may withhold a collection reimbursement charge of five percent 

(5%) of the amount collected pursuant to this section.  

8.01.034  Applicability 

38



The tax imposed by this Division shall apply to all transient lodging in the unincorporated areas 

of Curry County; it shall not apply to transient lodging within incorporated cities. 

SECTION 8.01.040  EXEMPTIONS 

The following are exempt from the County TLT tax: 

1. A dwelling unit in a hospital, health care facility, long-term care facility or any 

other residential facility that is licensed, registered or certifies by the Department 

of Human Services or the Oregon Health Authority. 

2. A dwelling unit in a facility providing treatment for drug and alcohol abuse or 

providing mental health treatment. 

3. A dwelling unit that is used by members of the general public for a temporary 

human occupancy for fewer than thirty (30) days per year. 

4. A dwelling unit, the consideration for which is funded through a contract with a 

government agency and the purpose of which is to provide emergency or temporary 

shelter. 

5. A dwelling unit at a nonprofit youth or church camp, nonprofit conference center 

or other nonprofit facility. 

6. A dwelling unit that is leased or otherwise occupied by the same person for a 

consecutive period of thirty (30) days or more during the year. The requirements of 

this subsection are satisfied even if the physical dwelling unit changes during the 

consecutive period, if: 

a. All dwelling units occupied are within the same facility; and 

b. The person paying consideration for the transient lodging is the same person 

throughout the consecutive period.  

 

SECTION 8.01.050  USE OF REVENUE 

Per ORS 320.350,  

1. At least seventy percent (70%) of net revenue from a new or increased local 

transient lodging tax shall be used to: 

a. Fund tourism promotion or tourism-related facilities; and 

b. Finance or refinance the debt of tourism-related facilities and pay 

reasonably administrative costs incurred in financing or refinancing that 

debt, provided that: 

39



i. The net revenue may be used for administrative costs only if the unit of 

local government provides a collection reimbursement charge; and 

ii. Upon retirement of the debt, the unit of local government reduces the tax by 

the amount by which the tax was increased to finance or refinance the debt. 

2. No more than thirty percent (30%) of net revenue from a new or increased local 

transient lodging tax may be used to fund other County services. 

 

SECTION 8.01.060  IMPLEMENTING ORDINANCE AUTHORIZATION 

The Board may, be separate ordinance, promulgate additional definitions, rules and regulations 

necessary or convenient for the administration, collection, refund, and enforcement of this 

Division.  

  

40



ARTICLE EIGHT 

 

DIVISION TWO   IMPLEMENTATION OF TRANSIENT LODGING TAX 

 

SECTION 8.02.010  STATEMENT OF PURPOSE AND AUTHORITY 

This Division is enacted pursuant to Curry County Transient Lodging Tax (“TLT”) Implementing 

Ordinance; Ordinance No. 19-02 and subsequently amended by Ordinance No. 19-13. The purpose 

of this Division is to codify the implementation of TLT tax provisions enacted by Ordinance 

pursuant to Oregon Revised Statutes, Chapter 320. 

 

SECTION 8.02.020  DEFINITIONS 

1. “Board” means the Board of County Commissioners of Curry County.  

2. “County” means Curry County, Oregon, a political subdivision of the State of 

Oregon. 

3. “Occupancy” means the right to the use or possession of any space in transient 

lodging for dwelling, lodging or sleeping purposes for less than thirty (30) days. 

4. “Occupant” means any individual who exercises occupancy or is entitled to 

occupancy in transient lodging for a period of thirty (30) consecutive calendar days 

or less, counting portions of calendar days as full days.  

5. “Person” means any individual, firm, partnership, joint venture, association, social 

club, fraternal organization, fraternity, sorority, public or private dormitory, joint 

stock company, corporation, estate, trust, business trust, receiver, trustee, syndicate, 

or any other group, or combination acting as a unit, or other organization or entity. 

6. “Rent” means the consideration paid or payable by an occupant for the occupancy 

of space in transient lodging valued in money, goods, labor, credits, property or 

other consideration. If a separate fee is charged for services, goods, or commodities 

and the fee is optional, that fee is not included in rent.  

7. “Short-Term Rental” means a house, duplex, multi-plex, apartment, condominium, 

houseboat, trailer, or other residential dwelling unit for transient lodging 

occupancy. Generally, a short-term rental is zoned residential or has a building 

occupancy that only allows for residential use.  

8. “Short-Term Rental Hosting Platform” means a business or other person that 

facilitates the retail sale of transient lodging by connecting occupants with transient 

lodging providers, either online or in any other manner. Short-term rental hosting 

platforms are transient lodging intermediaries.  

41



9. “Tax” means either the tax payable by the transient, or the aggregate amount of 

taxes due from a transient lodging tax collector during the period for which he is 

required to report his collections.  

10. “Tax Administrator” means the Curry County Board of Commissioners, or its 

designee. 

11. “TLT” means Transient Lodging Tax. 

12. “Transient” means any individual who exercises occupancy or is entitled to 

occupancy in a transient lodging facility for a period of less than thirty (30) 

consecutive days, counting portions of calendar days as full days. The day the 

transient checks out of the transient lodging shall not be included in determining 

the thirty (30) day period if the transient is not charged rent for that day by the 

transient lodging tax collector. Any such person so occupying space in a transient 

lodging facility shall be deemed to be a transient until the period of twenty-nine 

(29) days has expired unless there is an agreement in writing between the transient 

lodging tax collector and the occupant providing for a longer period of occupancy, 

or the tenancy actually extends more than twenty-nine (29) consecutive days. In 

determining whether a person is a transient, uninterrupted periods of occupancy 

extending both prior and subsequent to the effective date of this Division may be 

considered. A person who pays for lodging on a monthly basis, irrespective of the 

number of days in such month, shall not be deemed a transient.  

13. “Transient Lodging” or “Transient Lodging Facility” means: 

a. Hotel, motel and Inn dwelling units that are used for temporary overnight 

human occupancy; 

b. Spaces used for parking recreational vehicles or erecting tents during 

periods of human occupancy; or 

c. Houses, cabins, condominiums, apartment units, or other dwelling units, or 

portions of any of these dwelling units that are used for temporary human 

occupancy.  

14.  “Transient Lodging Intermediary” means a person other than a transient lodging provider 

that facilitates the retail sale of transient lodging and charges for occupancy of the transient 

lodging. 

15. “Transient Lodging Provider” means a person that furnishes transient lodging.  

16. “Transient Lodging Tax Collector” means a transient lodging provider or a transient 

lodging intermediary. 

17. “Transient Lodging Tax Review Committee” means a committee composed of an 

accountant, an attorney, a transient lodging tax collector, and two other persons appointed 

by the Board; and may be owners or operators of transient lodging.  

42



SECTION 8.02.030 COLLECTION AND PAYMENT OF TAX  

Each transient lodging tax collector shall collect the tax imposed by this Division at the same time 

as the rent is collected from every transient. The amount of tax shall be separately stated upon the 

transient lodging tax collector. No transient lodging tax collector of a transient lodging facility 

shall advertise that the tax or any part of the tax will be assumed or absorbed by the transient 

lodging tax collector, or that it will not be added to the rent, or that, when added, any part will be 

refunded, except in the manner provided by this Division.  

8.02.031   Tax Owed 

For the privilege of occupancy in any transient lodging after the effective date of this Division, 

each transient shall pay a tax in the amount required by Curry County Ordinance No. 19-01/Article 

Eight, Division One of Curry County Code. The tax constitutes a debt owed by the transient to the 

County, which is extinguished only by payment by the transient lodging tax collector to the 

County. The transient shall pay the tax to the transient lodging tax collector of the transient lodging 

facility at the time the rent is paid. The transient lodging tax collector shall enter the tax on his/her 

records when rent is collected if the transient lodging tax collector keeps his records on the cash 

accounting basis; and when earned if the transient lodging tax collector keeps his/her records on 

the accrual accounting basis. If rent is paid in installments, a proportionate share of the tax shall 

be paid by the transient to the transient lodging tax collector with each installment.  

8.02.032   Collection of Tax by Transient Lodging Tax Collector 

Every transient lodging tax collector shall collect the Tax at the time rent is paid, unless exemption 

applies. If payment is by credit card, for purposes of this section, payment is made at the time 

credit card information is provided to the transient lodging tax collector, not when the transient 

lodging tax collector ultimately receives credit for the transaction. While holding the payment in 

trust for the County, a transient lodging tax collector may commingle the tax proceeds with the 

transient lodging tax collector’s funds, but the transient lodging tax collector is not the owner of 

tax proceeds, except that, when a return is filed, the transient lodging tax collector becomes the 

owner of the administrative fee authorized to be retained. Transient lodging tax collectors may 

choose to file returns and remit payment based on amounts accrued but not yet collected.  

For rent collected on portions of a dollar, fractions of a penny shall not be remitted.  

8.02.033   Short-Term Rental Housing Platform Fees 

A hosting platform for Short-Term Rentals may collect a fee for booking services in connection 

with Short-Term Rentals only when those Short-Term Rentals are lawfully registered as operators 

with the County and possess a certificate of authority at the time the Short-Term Rental is 

occupied.  

8.02.034   Payment of Tax 

When a return is required under this Division, the transient lodging tax collector required to make 

the return shall remit the tax due to the Tax Administrator at the time fixed for filing the return.  

43



8.02.036   Amounts Held in Trust 

Every transient lodging tax collector required to collect TLT shall be deemed to hold the amount 

collected in trust for Curry County and for payment to the Tax Administrator in the manner and at 

the time provided herein. 

 

SECTION 8.02.040  GENERAL ADMINISTRATION 

8.02.041   Liability 

Transient Lodging Providers who receive any portion of the rent for transient lodging and transient 

lodging intermediaries that provide booking services are both transient lodging tax collectors and 

are jointly and severally liable for the Tax.  

The transient lodging tax collector is liable for any Tax that should have been collected from the 

occupant, except in cases of nonpayment of rent. 

8.02.042   Recordkeeping 

Every transient lodging tax collector shall keep guest records of transient lodging sales and 

accounting books and records of transient lodging sales, render statements and comply with rules 

adopted by the Board with respect to the Tax. The records and statements required by this Division 

must be sufficient to show whether there is a tax liability imposed hereon. All records shall be 

retained by the transient lodging tax collector for a period of three years and six months after their 

creation.  

8.02.043   Examination of Records; Investigations 

Upon request by the County, transient lodging tax collectors must provide all physical addresses 

of transient lodging facilities subject to their control within the County and related contact 

information, including the name and mailing address of the general manager, agent, owner, host 

or other responsible person for the location.  

The Tax Administrator, or any person authorized in writing by the Tax Administrator, may 

examine during business hours the books, papers, and accounting records relating to transient 

lodging sales of any transient lodging tax collector, after notification to the transient lodging tax 

collector liable for the tax, and may investigate the business of the transient lodging tax collector 

in order to verify the accuracy of any return made, or if no return is made by the transient lodging 

tax collector, to ascertain and determine the amount required to be paid. 

8.02.044   Confidential Character of Information Obtained 

It shall be unlawful for the Tax Administrator or any person having an administrative or clerical 

duty under the provisions of this Division to make known in any manner whatever the business 

affairs, operations, or information obtained by an investigation of records and equipment of any 

person required to obtain a Transient Occupancy Registration Certificate, or pay a transient 

lodging tax, or any other person visited or examined in the discharge of official duty, or the amount 

44



or source of income, profits, losses, expenditures, or any particular thereof, set forth in any 

statement, or to permit any statement or application, or copy thereof, or any book containing an 

abstract or particulars thereof to be seen or examined by any person; provided, that nothing in this 

subsection shall be construed to prevent: 

1. The disclosure or examination of records and equipment by another County official, 

employee, or agent for collection of taxes for the sole purpose of administering or 

enforcing and provisions of this Division, or collection of taxes; 

2. The disclosure, after the filing of a written request to that effect, to the taxpayer 

themselves, receivers, trustees, executors, administrators, assigns and guarantors, 

if directly interested, of information as to any paid tax, any unpaid tax, or amount 

of tax required to be collected, or interest and penalties; further provided, however, 

that the County Legal Counsel approves each such disclosure and that the Tax 

Administrator may refuse to make any disclosure referred to under this paragraph 

when in his opinion the public interest would suffer thereby; 

3. The disclosure of the names and addresses of any persons to whom Transient 

Occupancy Registration Certificates have been issued; 

4. The disclosure of general statistics regarding taxes collected or business done in the 

County. 

5. Disclosure consistent with ORS 192.502(18). 

 

SECTION 8.02.050  EXEMPTIONS 

No TLT shall be imposed upon: 

The following are exempt from the County TLT tax: 

1. A dwelling unit in a hospital, health care facility, long-term care facility or any 

other residential facility that is licensed, registered or certifies by the Department 

of Human Services or the Oregon Health Authority. 

2. A dwelling unit in a facility providing treatment for drug and alcohol abuse or 

providing mental health treatment. 

3. A dwelling unit that is used by members of the general public for a temporary 

human occupancy for fewer than thirty (30) days per year. 

4. A dwelling unit, the consideration for which is funded through a contract with a 

government agency and the purpose of which is to provide emergency or temporary 

shelter. 

5. A dwelling unit at a nonprofit youth or church camp, nonprofit conference center 

or other nonprofit facility. 

45



6. A dwelling unit that is leased or otherwise occupied by the same person for a 

consecutive period of thirty (30) days or more during the year. The requirements of 

this subsection are satisfied even if the physical dwelling unit changes during the 

consecutive period, if: 

a. All dwelling units occupied are within the same facility; and 

b. The person paying consideration for the transient lodging is the same person 

throughout the consecutive period.  

 

SECTION 8.02.060  REGISTRATION OF TRANSIENT LODGING PROVIDER  

8.02.061   Registration 

Every person engaging or about to engage in business as a provider of transient lodging in the 

County shall register with the Tax Administrator within fifteen (15) days after commencing 

business. The privilege of registration after the date of imposition of such tax shall not relieve any 

person from the obligation of payment or collection of tax regardless of registration. Registration 

shall be on a form provided by the Tax Administrator and shall set forth the name under which the 

provider transacts or intends to transact business, the location of the place of business or places of 

business, and such other information to facilitate collection of the tax as the Tax Administrator 

may require. The registration shall be signed by the provider. The Tax Administrator shall, within 

ten (10) days after registration, issue without charge a certificate of authority to each registrant to 

collect the tax from the occupancy, together with a duplicate thereof for each additional place of 

business of each registrant. Certificates shall be non-assignable and nontransferable and shall be 

surrendered immediately to the Tax Administrator upon the cessation of business at the location 

names or upon its sale or transfer. Each certificate and duplicate shall state the place of business 

to which it is applicable and shall be prominently displayed therein so as to be seen and come to 

the notice readily of all occupants and persons seeking occupancy. The certificate shall include the 

following: 

a. The name of the provider; 

b. The address of the transient lodging facility;  

c. The date upon which the certificate was issued; and 

d. The certificate number as assigned by the tax administrator.  

8.02.062  Form of Registration Certificate 

The Registration Certificate shall be in substantially the following form: 

“This Transient Occupancy Registration Certificate signifies that the person named 

on the face hereof has fulfilled the requirements of the Transient Lodging Tax 

Regulations by registration with the Tax Administrator for the purpose of collection 

from transients the lodging tax imposed by said County and remitting said tax to 

46



the Tax Administrator. This certificate does not authorize any person to conduct 

any unlawful business or to conduct any lawful business in an unlawful manner, or 

to operate a transient lodging facility without strictly complying with all local 

applicable laws, including, but not limited to those requiring a permit from any 

board, commission, department, or office of the County. This Certificate does not 

constitute a permit.” 

 

SECTION 8.02.070  RETURNS 

8.02.071   Returns 

Every transient lodging tax collector is responsible for collecting the tax imposed under this 

Article, and shall file a return with the Tax Administrator, on or before the last day of the month 

following the end of each calendar quarter, reporting the amount of tax due during the quarter. The 

Tax Administrator or its designee shall prescribe the form of the return required by this section, 

and the Board shall adopt rules by ordinance regarding the preparation and filing of the return and 

the payment of the tax, including rules requiring that returns be made under penalties for false 

swearing.  

The Tax Administrator has authority to classify or district the transient lodging tax collector for 

determination of applicable tax periods and shall notify each transient lodging tax collector of the 

due and delinquent dates for the transient lodging tax collector’s returns. The initial return under 

this Article may be for less than the three months preceding the due date; thereafter returns shall 

be made for the applicable quarterly period.  

On or before the last day of the month following each quarter of collection, a return for the 

preceding quarter’s tax collections shall be filed with the Tax Administrator. The return shall be 

filed in such form as the Tax Administrator may prescribe by every transient lodging tax collector 

liable for payment of tax. A return must be filed with the Tax Administrator even if no taxes have 

been collected, except as provided by subsection 8.02.072. 

 

8.02.072   Due Date for Return 

All amounts of such taxes collected by any transient lodging tax collector are due and payable to 

the Tax Administrator on a quarterly basis on the last day of the following month for the preceding 

three months; and are delinquent on the first day following the month in which they are due.  

Once the amount held by a transient lodging tax collector, other than one that rents privately owned 

camping or recreational vehicle spaces, equals or exceeds $100.00; or by December 31st of each 

year if the $100.00 threshold is not met, the transient lodging tax collector shall remit the tax 

collected at the next following reporting period as determined in this section.  

47



A transient lodging tax collector that rents privately owned camping or recreational vehicle spaces 

shall not be required to file a return or pay the tax collected until the amount of money held equals 

or exceeds $100.00. 

8.02.073   Contents of Return 

Returns shall show the amount of tax collected or otherwise due for the related period. The Tax 

Administrator may require returns to show the total rentals upon which tax was collected or 

otherwise due, the number of rooms or spaces available during that period, gross receipts of the 

transient lodging tax collector for such period, and an explanation in detail of any discrepancy 

between such amounts and the amount of rents exempt, if any.  

8.02.074   Delivery of Return 

The person required to file the return shall deliver the return, together with the remittance of the 

amount of the tax due, to the Tax Administrator’s office, either by personal delivery or by mail. If 

the return is mailed, the postmark shall be considered the date of delivery for determining 

delinquencies. 

8.02.075   Extensions 

For good cause, the Tax Administrator may extend for not to exceed one month the time for making 

any return or payment of tax. No further extension shall be granted except by the Transient 

Lodging Tax Review Committee. Any transient lodging tax collector to whom an extension is 

granted shall pay interest at the rate of one percent (1%) per month on the amount to tax due. If a 

return is not filed, and the tax and interest due is not paid by the end of the extension granted, then 

the interest shall become a part of the tax for computation of penalties described elsewhere in this 

Division.  

 

SECTION 8.02.080  PENALTIES  

The Tax Administrator shall enforce the provisions of this Division.  

8.02.081   Penalties 

1. Original Delinquency:  Any transient lodging tax collector who has not been 

granted an extension of time for remittance of tax due and who fails to remit any 

tax imposed by Article Eight, Division One, shall pay the greater of ten percent 

(10%) of the amount of the tax due or $100.00 in addition to the amount of the tax. 

2. Continued Delinquency: Any transient lodging tax collector who has not been 

granted an extension of time for remittance of tax due, and who failed to pay a 

delinquent remittance on or before a period of thirty days following the date on 

which the remittance first became delinquent shall pay a second delinquency 

penalty of fifteen percent (15%) of the mount of the tax due plus the tax and the ten 

percent (10%) penalty first imposed. 

48



3. Fraud:  If the Tax Administrator determines that the nonpayment of any 

remittance due under this Article is due to fraud or intent to evade the provisions 

thereof, a penalty of twenty-five percent (25%) of the amount of the tax shall be 

added thereto in addition to the penalties stated in subsections 8.02.081 and 

8.02.082.  

8.02.082   Interest 

In addition to the penalties imposed, any transient lodging tax collector who fails to remit any tax 

imposed by this Article shall pay interest at the rate of one percent (1%) per month, or fraction 

thereof, without proration for portions of a month. Interest shall accrue on the amount of the tax 

due, exclusive of penalties, from the date on which the remittance first became delinquent, and 

shall continue to accrue until the amount due and interest owing has been paid.  

8.02.083   Penalties and Interest 

Every penalty imposed and such interest as accrues under the provisions of this Division shall be 

merged with and become a part of the tax herein required to be paid. 

8.02.084   Petition for Waiver 

Any transient lodging tax collector who fails to remit the tax herein levied within the time herein 

stated shall pay the penalties described in this Section; provided, however, that the transient 

lodging tax collector may petition the Transient Lodging Tax Review Committee for waiver and 

refund of the penalty or any portion thereof and the Transient Lodging Tax Review Committee 

may, if a good and sufficient reason is shown, waive and direct a refund of the penalty or any 

portion thereof.  

 

SECTION 8.02.090  DETERMINATIONS OF DEFICIENCY; EVASION; DELAY 

8.02.091   Determination of Deficiency  

If the Tax Administrator determines that the returns are incorrect, the amount required may be 

computed and determined upon the basis of the facts contained in the return or returns or upon the 

basis of the facts contained in the return or returns or upon the basis of any information in the 

possession of the Tax Administrator, or that may come into their possession. One or more 

deficiency determinations may be made of the amount due for one or more than one period, and 

the amount so determined shall be due and payable immediately upon service of notice as herein 

provided after which the amount determined is delinquent. Penalties on deficiencies shall be 

applied as set forth in Section 8.02.080.  

8.02.092   Tax Administrator Ability to Offset 

In making a determination, the Tax Administrator may offset overpayments, if any, which may 

have been previously made for a period or periods, against any underpayment for a subsequent 

period or periods, or against penalties and interest on the underpayments. The interest on 

underpayments shall be computed in the manner set forth in Section 8.02.080. 

49



8.02.093   Delivery of Notice 

The Tax Administrator shall give to the transient lodging tax collector or occupant a written notice 

of the determination. The notice may be served personally or by mail. If by mail, the notice shall 

be addressed to the transient lodging tax collector at the address as it appears on the records of the 

Tax Administrator. In case of service by mail of any notice required by this Division, such shall 

be served by mailing notice by certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested. 

Except in the case of fraud or intent to evade this Division of authorized rules or regulations, every 

deficiency determination shall be made and notice thereof mailed within three years after the last 

day of the month following the close of the quarterly period for which the amount is proposed to 

be determined, or within three years after the return is filed; whichever period expires later.  

8.02.094   Fraud; Refusal to Collect; Evasion 

If any transient lodging tax collector shall fail or refuse to collect the tax or to make, within the 

time provided in this Division, any report or remittance of the tax or any portion thereof required, 

or make a fraudulent return or otherwise willfully attempts to evade the requirements of this 

division, the Tax Administrator shall proceed in such manner deemed best to obtain the facts and 

information on which to base an estimate of the tax due. As soon as the Tax Administrator has 

determined the tax due that is imposed by this Division from any transient lodging tax collector 

that has failed or refused to collect the same and to report and remit such tax, the Tax Administrator 

shall proceed to determine and assess against such transient lodging tax collector the tax, interest 

and penalties provided by this Division. When determination is made, notice shall be given as 

provided by subsection 8.02.093. 

8.02.095   Delay 

If the Tax Administrator believes that the collection of any tax or any amount of any tax required 

to be collected and paid to the County will be jeopardized by delay, or if any determination will 

be jeopardized by delay, the Tax Administrator shall thereupon make a determination of the tax or 

amount of tax required to be collected, noting the fact upon the determination. The amount so 

determined as herein provided shall be immediately due and payable and the transient lodging tax 

collector may petition, after payment has been made, for a redemption and refund of such 

determination, if a petition is filed within twenty (20) days from the date of service of notice by 

the Tax Administrator.  

 

SECTION 8.02.100  REDETERMINATIONS 

8.02.101   Petition for Redetermination 

Any person against whom a determination is made under Section 8.02.090, or any person directly 

interested, may petition for a redetermination, redemption and refund within twenty (20) days from 

the date of service of notice by the Tax Administrator, as required by subsection 8.02.095. If a 

petition for redetermination and refund is not filed within the time required, the determination 

becomes final at the expiration of the twenty (20) day period.  

50



8.02.102   Hearing on Petition for Redetermination 

If a petition for redetermination and refund is filed within the allowable period, the Tax 

Administrator shall reconsider the determination, and, if the person has so requested in the petition, 

shall grant the person a public hearing and shall give them twenty (20) days’ notice of the time 

and place of hearing. The Tax Administrator may continue the hearing from time to time as may 

be necessary.  

The Tax Administrator may decrease or increase the amount of the determination as a result of the 

hearing and if an increase is determined each increase shall be payable immediately after the 

hearing.  

8.02.103   Order Following Hearing 

The order or decision of the Tax Administrator upon a petition for redetermination of a redemption 

and refund becomes final twenty (20) days after service upon the petitioner of notice thereof, unless 

appeal of such order or decision is filed with the Transient Lodging Tax Review Committee within 

twenty (20) days after the service of such notice. 

8.02.104   Applicability of Petition 

No petition for redetermination of redemption and refund or appeal therefrom shall be effective 

for any purpose unless the transient lodging tax collector has first complied with the payment 

provisions of this Division.  

 

SECTION 8.02.110  SECURITY FOR COLLECTION OF TAX  

To ensure compliance with this Division, the Tax Administrator may require transient lodging tax 

collector to deposit with the County security in a form and amount determined by the Tax 

Administrator. The amount of security shall not be greater than twice the transient lodging tax 

collector’s estimated quarterly liability for the period for which they file returns, or five thousand 

dollars ($5,000.00), whichever amount is lesser. The amount of security may be increased or 

decreased by the Tax Administrator subject to limitations herein provided.  

At any time within three years after any tax, or any amount of tax required to be collected, becomes 

due and payable, or at any time within three years after a determination becomes final, the Tax 

Administrator may bring an action in the courts of this state, any other state, or of the United State 

in the name of the County to collect the amount delinquent plus penalties and interest, reasonable, 

attorneys’ fees determined by the court, and court costs. 

 

SECTION 8.02.120  LIEN 

8.02.121   Taxes Create Lien 

The tax imposed by this Division together with the interest and penalties, reasonable attorneys’ 

fees, filing fees, and advertising costs shall be and, until paid, remain a lien from the date of its 

51



recording with the County Clerk, and superior to all subsequent recorded liens on all tangible 

personal property used in the transient lodging facility of a transient lodging tax collection within 

the County, and may be foreclosed on and sold as may be necessary to discharge shall be issued 

by the Tax Administrator whenever the transient lodging tax collector is in default in the payment 

of the tax, interest, and/or penalty. A copy of the notice shall be sent by certified mail to the 

transient lodging tax collector. The Tax Administrator may send notice of the lien to owners 

affected by the lien. The personal property subject to a lien seized by any deputy or employee of 

the Tax Administrator may be sold at public auction after ten (10) days’ notice by one publication 

in a newspaper of general circulation published in the County. Any lien for taxes shown on the 

records of the proper County official shall, upon payment of all taxes, penalties, and interest 

thereon, be released by the Tax Administrator when the full amount determined to be due has been 

paid to the County and the transient lodging tax collector or person making such payment shall 

have a receipt stating thereon that the full amount of taxes, penalties, and interest have been paid 

and that the lien is hereby released and the record of lien is satisfied. 

8.02.122   Attachment of Lien to Personal Property 

The lien or liens created by this section attach to all tangible personal property referenced herein. 

The lien or liens created shall also attach to the proceeds of the sale and tangible personal property 

subject to the lien or liens if: 

a. Subsequent to the recording of the lien or liens, tangible personal property, or any 

part thereof, is sold or delivered to an agent, broker, cooperative agency, or other 

person to be sold or otherwise disposed of; and 

b. The purchaser, agent, broker, cooperative agency, or other person has actual or 

constructive notice of the filing of the lien or liens, and the proceeds that were 

received or will be received from the sale or other disposal of the tangible personal 

property have not been delivered to the owner of the tangible personal property.  

8.02.123   Proceeds from Sale of Personal Property 

When a lien created by this section attaches to the proceeds of a sale of tangible personal property 

under subsection 8.02.122 a purchaser, agent, broker, cooperative agency, or other person shall 

not deliver the proceeds or that portion of the proceeds equal to the amount of the lien claim to the 

owner until: 

a. A time specified by Section 8.02.080 of this Division during which a suit to 

foreclose the lien must be commenced elapses; 

b. A court orders delivery of the proceeds; or 

c. The Tax Administrator issues a receipt stating that the full amount of taxes, interest, 

penalties, and costs thereon have been paid and that the lien is released and the 

record of lien is satisfied.  

 

52



8.02.124   Destruction of Property Subject to Lien 

Any person to whom a notice of lien has been given as provided by this section, who dismantles, 

removes from the County, misdelivers, or conceals tangible personal property or the proceeds of 

the sale of tangible personal property upon which there is a valid lien without the written consent 

of the lien claimant shall be liable to the lien claimant for damages proximately resulting therefrom 

which sum may be recovered according to the provisions of Section 8.02.080 of this Division.  

 

SECTION 8.02.130  REFUNDS 

8.02.131   Refunds by County to the Transient Lodging Tax Collector 

Whenever the amount of any tax, penalty or interest has been paid more than once or has been 

erroneously or illegally collected or received by the Tax Administrator under this Division, it may 

be refunded, provided a verified claim in writing, stating the specific reason upon which the claim 

is founded, is filed with the Tax Administrator within three years from the date of payment. The 

claim shall be made on forms provided by the Tax Administrator. If the claim is approved by the 

Tax Administrator, the excess amount collected or paid may be refunded or may be credited on 

any amount then due and payable from the transient lodging tax collector from whom it was 

collected or by whom it was collected or by whom paid and the balance may be refunded to such 

transient lodging collector, or their administrators, executors or assigns. 

8.02.132   Refunds by County to Transient 

Whenever the tax required by this Division has been collected by a transient lodging tax collector, 

and deposited by the transient lodging tax collector with the Tax Administrator, and it is later 

determined that the tax was erroneously paid or illegally collected or received by the Tax 

Administrator, it may be refunded by the Tax Administrator to the transient, provided a verified 

claim in writing, stating the specific reason on which the claim is founded, is filed with the Tax 

Administrator within three years from the date of payment. 

8.02.133   Refunds by Transient Lodging Tax Collector to Tenant 

Whenever the tax required by this Division has been collected by the transient lodging tax collector 

and it is later determined that the tenant occupies the transient lodging facility for a period 

exceeding twenty-nine (29) days without interruption, the transient lodging tax collector shall 

refund to such tenant the tax previously collected from the tenant as a transient. The transient 

lodging tax collector shall account for such collection and refund to the Tax Administrator. If the 

transient lodging tax collector has remitted the tax prior to the refund or credit to the tenant, they 

shall be entitled to a corresponding refund under this section.  

 

 

 

53



SECTION 8.02.140  ALLOCATION OF FUNDS 

The allocation, use and disbursement of TLT funds shall be consistent with ORS 320.300 to 

320.350, Curry County Ordinance Nos. 19-01, 19-02, and Curry County Code, Article Eight, 

Divisions One and Two; and any valid amendments thereto. 

1. The portion of monies contained in the Transient Lodging Tax Fund that are 

dedicated by Article Eight, Division One, for tourism promotion and tourism-

related facilities (“TLT Funds”) shall be distributed and administered in accordance 

with this Section: 

a. First, subject to Board approval, half shall be allocated to the County Fair 

Fund, Event Center Account; 

b. The remainder shall be administered by a Tourism Promotions Committee, 

appointed by the Board. 

c. The County Tourism Promotions Committee shall: 

i. Consist of two members appointed from South Curry County, two 

members from Central Curry County, two members from North 

Curry County, as defined by the district boundaries of the three 

Curry County School Districts, and one member at large. Members 

shall be composed of individuals who represent a tourism-based 

business or a promotions based business. The at-large member shall 

be a community representative. The Committee shall not be 

comprised of more than three individuals from a similar business 

industry.  

ii. Annually conduct a county-wide needs assessment of tourism-

related facilities within unincorporated areas. 

iii. Develop and amend as necessary county-wide and regional 

strategies for tourism promotion.  

iv. In the first year, the Committee will prepare and present to the Board 

for its approval, a written report with findings on its needs 

assessment for Tourism Related Facilities; county-wide and 

regional strategies for tourism promotion; and its proposed budget 

for administration and overhead for the Committee.  

v. In subsequent years the Committee will prepare and present to the 

Board for approval, an annual report that contains, in addition to the 

matters described this section, the details concerning the allocations, 

amounts and uses of TLT funds during the prior year, an accounting 

of the Committee’s expenditures of TLT funds for administration 

and overhead and the unexpended balance of TLT funds in the 

possession of the Committee.  

54



vi. The Committee shall work in partnership with other government 

entities and organizations who participate in tourism promotion to 

solicit input, expertise, and resources.  

d. The purpose of the Tourism Promotions Committee is to advise the County 

on the policies for the uses of TLT funds; the strategies for tourism 

promotions and the needs assessment for tourism-related facilities.  

e. Following receipt of a written report described in this section, the Board 

will conduct a public presentation concerning the report, the proposed 

percentage allocations for TLT funds, the proposed strategies for tourism 

promotion and the Committee’s performance.  

f. The Board will annually retain the TLT funds for Tourism Promotion and 

Tourism Related Facilities until it has approved the performance of the 

Committee and the Committee’s written report for that year, or the created 

written report for that year. Once such approval has been given, the retained 

TLT funds will be released to the Committee with the balance due for that 

year to be released by the County Treasurer before the end of each calendar 

quarter for the amounts collected in the prior calendar quarter.  

g. In allocating TLT funds for Tourism Promotion, the Committee shall give 

preference to collaborative proposals that are consistent with the approved 

strategies and involve broad participation within the hospitality and tourism 

industry or other promotional proposals that embrace County-wide themes. 

h. The Board may provide for limits on the amount of TLT Funds that the 

Committee may retain for the overhead, administration, and amounts of 

unallocated TLT funds without coming back to the Board for approval to 

exceed those limits. 

i. Other than in subsection (a) above, the Board shall not require specific 

allocations or create earmarks of tourism related TLT revenues; however, 

the purpose of creating the Tourism Promotions Committee is to have 

representation from all areas of the County with the goal that TLT tourism-

related revenues be distributed fairly among the County’s regions.  

 2. For General Services: 

a. Not to exceed five percent (5%) of non-tourism TLT revenues may be spent 

on administration; 

b. Balance of non-tourism TLT revenues shall be allocated to the General 

Fund for distribution.  

 

 

55



SECTION 8.02.150  TRANSIENT LODGING TAX REVIEW COMMITTEE 

8.02.151   Creation of Committee 

The Board is authorized to create a Transient Lodging Tax Review Committee composed of an 

attorney, who may be County Legal Counsel; an accountant; a transient lodging tax collector; and 

two lay members. The Committee shall select from its members a chairman who shall serve at its 

pleasure. Three members of the Committee shall constitute a quorum. The Committee shall keep 

a record of its transactions. The Committee shall be deemed to be in the office of the Tax 

Administrator and shall keep its files in that office. The members of the Committee shall not, at 

any time, receive any compensation as such members or acting members for their services on the 

Committee. The Committee shall be appointed by the Board and shall serve four (4) year terms, 

except that, the accountant, the attorney, and the transient lodging tax collector appointed to the 

first Committee shall serve three (3) year terms only.  

8.02.152   Duties and Powers of Committee 

The powers and duties of the Transient Lodging Tax Review Committee shall be: 

1. To hear and determine appeals of orders or decisions of the Tax Administrator made 

upon petitions for redetermination of tax. The Committee may affirm, modify or 

reverse such orders or decisions, or dismiss the appeals, as may be just, and shall 

prescribe such forms, rules and regulations relating to appeals as may deemed 

necessary. In review of the Tax Administrator decision or order, the Committee 

may take such evidence and make such investigation as is deemed necessary. It 

shall give notice of its determinations in the manner set forth in subsection 8.02.093 

and shall file a copy of such determination with the Tax Administrator with 

certification thereon of the date of service thereof. Such determination shall become 

final twenty (20) days thereafter and shall thereupon become due and payable, 

subject to interest and penalties and enforceable by the Tax Administrator in a like 

manner as an order or decision of the Tax Administrator.  

2. To approve, modify or disapprove all forms and policies prescribed by the Tax 

Administrator in the administration and enforcement of this Ordinance. 

3. To hear and determine in such manner as shall be just, any protest which may be 

made by any person who may be interested, to any form or policy approved or 

prescribed by the Committee. 

4. To grant for good cause, applications for extensions of time in excess of one month, 

for making any return or payment of tax, and to prescribe rules therefore. 

5. To make such investigations as are deemed advisable regarding the imposition and 

administration of the transient lodging tax and report the findings to the Board; to 

act in an advisory capacity to the Board on matters pertaining to the transient 

lodging tax and enforcement problems and to recommend to the Board the 

adoption, amendment, or repeal of regulations pertaining thereto.  

56



8.02.153   Appeal Transient Lodging Tax  

Any person aggrieved by any decision of the Tax Administrator may appeal to the Transient 

Lodging Tax Review Committee by filing notice of appeal with the Tax Administrator within 

twenty (20) days of the serving or mailing of the tax notice or a decision given by the Tax 

Administrator. The Tax Administrator shall fix a time and place for hearing such appeal and shall 

give the appellant not less than twenty (20) days written notice of the time and place of hearing. 

 

SECTION 8.02.160  APPEAL TO BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

Any person aggrieved by any decision of the Transient Lodging Tax Review Committee may 

appeal to the Board by filing notice of appeal with the Tax Administrator within twenty (20) days 

of the serving or mailing of the notice of the decision given by the Transient Lodging Tax Review 

Committee. The Tax Administrator shall transmit said notice of appeal together with the file of 

sail appealed matter to the Board, who shall fix a time and place for hearing such appeal from the 

decision of the Transient Lodging Tax Review Committee. The Board shall give the appellant not 

less than twenty (20) days written notice of the time and place of the hearing of said appealed 

matter. Action by the Board on appeals shall be decided by a majority of the members present at 

the meeting where such appeal is considered.  

 

SECTION 8.02.170  VIOLATIONS 

It is unlawful for any transient lodging tax collector or other person so required, to fail or refuse to 

register, furnish any required return, furnish a supplemental return, or other data required by the 

Tax Administrator, or to render a false or fraudulent return. No person required to make, render, 

sign, or verify any report shall make any false or fraudulent report, with intent to defeat or evade 

the determination of any amount due under this Division.  

 

SECTION 8.02.180  ENFORCEMENT 

Violation of any of the provisions of this Division shall be a Class A Violation, with a maximum 

penalty of $2,000.00 in fines. Additionally, penalties may be assessed in accordance with Section 

8.02.080 of this Division, and Article Ten of the Curry County Code.  

 

57



58



BEFORE THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY, OREGON 

 

In the Matter of an Order Accepting the 

DOD Skillbridge Program Internship 

for the Aquatic Safety Program 

) 

) 

) 

) 

 

ORDER NO. _________ 

 

WHEREAS, the Aquatic Safety Program is currently staffed by one Aquatic Safety Officer – 

Lifeguard; and 

 

WHEREAS, providing pathways for employment and training through internship programs like 

the Department of Defense Skillbridge program, provide support to the Aquatic Safety Program; 

and  

 

WHEREAS, the Aquatic Safety Officer requests that the Board accept the Department of Defense 

SkillBridge internship with the Aquatic Safety Program. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS HEREBY 

ORDERS the acceptance of the DOD Skillbridge internship program with the Aquatic Safety 

Program.  

 

DATED this 5th day of March, 2025.   

 

CURRY COUNTY BOARD OF 

COMMISSIONERS 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Brad Alcorn, Chair 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Approved as to Form:     Patrick Hollinger, Vice Chair 

 

 

_________________________________  ____________________________________ 

Michael E. Fitzgerald, OSB #950738   Jay Trost, Commissioner 

County Legal Counsel 

59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



BEFORE THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF CURRY, OREGON 

 

In the Matter of an Order Adjusting 

Communications Towers Fees for Coos 

Forest Protective Association 

 

) 

) 

) 

 

ORDER NO. ___________ 

 

WHEREAS, on July 5, 2023, the Curry County Board of Commissioners approved a 

Communications Tower Fee schedule addressing public agency colocation and other general 

materials, services, and uses of County communications towers and tower sites; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board has concerns that the fees assessed to the Coos Forest Protective 

Association (“CFPA”) adversely impacts its ability to provide service to the public due to the 

extent of its use to ensure County-wide communications coverage; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is reasonable to consider a reduction in fees on a case by case basis if that reduction 

results in public benefit. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED THAT, effective retroactively to July 1, 

2023, and until otherwise ordered by the Board, the total fee assessment for communications tower 

charges to CFPA shall be reduced by sixty percent (60%).  

 

 

DATED this 5th day of March, 2025.  BOARD OF CURRY COUNTY COMMISSIONERS  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Approved as to Form: 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Michael E. Fitzgerald, OSB #950738 

Curry County Legal Counsel 

 

_________________________________________ 

Brad Alcorn, Chair 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Patrick Hollinger, Vice Chair 

 

 

_________________________________________ 

Jay Trost, Commissioner 

 

74



75




